GODALMING TOWN COUNCIL

Tel: 01483 523575 Municipal Buildings

Bridge Street Godalming Surrey GU7 1HT

E-Mail: office@godalming-tc.gov.uk Godal Website: www.godalming-tc.gov.uk Surrey GU7

26 March 2021

Sir/Madam

I HEREBY SUMMON YOU to attend the Full Council Meeting of the Godalming Town Council to be held via Zoom on THURSDAY, 1 APRIL 2020 at 7.30pm or at the conclusion of the preceding Environment & Planning Committee, whichever is later.

DATED this 26th day of March 2020.

Andy Jeffery Clerk to the Town Council

The meeting of Godalming Town Council will be held under the provisions of the Coronavirus Act 2020 and The Local Authorities and Police & Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020

If you wish to speak at this meeting please contact Godalming Town Council on 01483 523575 or email office@godalming-tc.gov.uk

If you wish to watch the council meeting's proceedings, please go to Godalming Town Council's Facebook page, alternatively please contact office@godalming-tc.gov.uk by 5.00pm on 1 April 2021 for alternative options.

The meeting will be preceded by prayer with the Revd Maggie Stirling Troy officiating – all who wish to participate in prayers are most welcome to do so; however, anyone not wishing to participate may leave the chamber or sit quietly for the short duration of the prayers. All individuals' decisions in this matter are respected.

AGENDA

1. MINUTES

THE TOWN MAYOR to sign as a correct record the Minutes of the Meeting of the Council held on the 17 December 2020.

2. APOLOGIES

TO RECEIVE apologies for absence.

3. DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS AND NON-PECUNIARY INTERESTS

To receive from Members any declarations of interests in relation to any items included on the Agenda for this meeting required to be disclosed by the Localism Act 2011 and the Godalming Members' Code of Conduct.

4. PETITIONS/STATEMENTS/QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC

THE TOWN MAYOR to invite members of the public to make representations, ask or answer questions and give evidence in respect of the business on the agenda or other matters not on the agenda. This forum to be conducted in accordance with Standing Order 5:

Members of the Public have the right to attend all meetings of the Town Council and its Committees and are welcome.

- a) The period of time designated for public participation at a meeting for a maximum of three minutes per person or 15 minutes overall, unless otherwise directed by the chairman of the meeting,
- b) A question shall not require a response at the meeting nor start a debate on the question. The chairman of the meeting may direct that a written or oral response be given. If a matter raised is one for principle councils or other authorities, the person making representations will be informed of the appropriate contact details.

5. QUESTIONS BY MEMBERS

To consider any questions from councillors in accordance with Standing Order 6.

6. RECEIPT OF OFFICIAL ANNOUNCEMENTS

To receive official announcements, letters, etc.

7. RECEIPT OF COMMITTEE CHAIRS' REPORTS

To receive Chairs' reports of the Committees as under:

Policy & Management Committee

Policy Document Review

The Policy & Management Committee considered the documents listed below and resolved to agree to recommend them for adoption by Full Council:

Equality & Diversity Policy
Equality & Diversity Statement
Health & Safety Policy
Health & Safety Statement
Community Engagement Strategy.

Staffing Committee

Modern Slavery Statement

Recommendation: Members are requested to resolve to adopt the Modern Slavery Statement.

The Staffing Committee considered the requirements of Section 54 of the Modern Slavery Act 2015 that requires commercial organisations in the UK, with a turnover of at least £36 million, to prepare and publish a slavery and human trafficking statement each year. Although Godalming Town Council is not in the scope of Section 54 it may, if it so wishes, voluntarily publish a statement.

The Staffing Committee considered the Modern Slavery Statement (copy attached for the information of Members) and resolved to approve the Statement for adoption by Full Council.

8. RECEIPT OF COMMITTEE MINUTES

To receive the minutes of the undermentioned Committees:

Meetings Dated

Audit Committee 21 January 2021

Environment & Planning	7 January 2021 28 January 2021 18 February 2021 11 March 2021
Policy & Management Committee	28 January 2021 11 March 2021

9. GODALMING JOINT BURIAL COMMITTEE – REPORT

Staffing Committee

TO NOTE FOR INFORMATION the report of the Godalming Joint Burial Committee of its proceedings on the 21 January 2021.

10. REPORT OF THE PUBLIC SPACE PROTECTION ORDER WORKING GROUP - ITEM FOR DECISION

Members to consider a report from the Public Spaces Prevention Order Working Group (report to be circulated to Members by 29 March 2021) and resolve to agree the recommendations contained within.

11. <u>INTERNAL AUDITOR'S REPORT – ITEM FOR DECISION</u>

The Audit Committee considered the report from the Council's Internal Auditor, Mulberry & Co, on an interim internal audit conducted on the 22 September 2020 for the 2020/21 financial year and noted the following responses to concerns raised:

Audit Point	Audit Findings	Council Response
Transparency	Misdirected link on Grants	Link has now been corrected
GDPR	May want to consider redacting personal signatures on the register of interest (on public view) in future	Agreed – has now been actioned.
Bank Reconciliations	Chair MUST attend site and sign reconciliations and face bank statements	Chair has now signed all bank reconciliations.

Members to note and agree Council responses as above.

12. CITIZENS' ADVICE WAVERLEY – ITEM FOR NOTE

Member to receive an update from the Town Clerk on the Service Level Agreement between Godalming Town Council and Citizens' Advice Waverley.

13. WAVERLEY HOPPA COMMUNITY TRANSPORT- ITEM FOR NOTE

Members to receive the Waverley Hoppa Community Transport Report, an organisation supported by SLA funding from Godalming Town Council (report attached for the information of Members).

18 February 2021

14. NHS, SOCIAL CARE & FRONTLINE WORKERS' DAY 5 JULY 2021 – ITEM FOR DECISION

Recommendations:

- Members to determine whether they wish GTC to organise and promote the NHS, Social Care & Frontline Workers' Day commemorations in Godalming on 5 July 2021; and
- ii. if Members affirm that GTC should organise and promote the event, Members are requested to confirm whether they wish to proceed with Option 1 or Option 2 set out in the proposed programme and costings.

A message from Bruno Peek LVO OBE OPR, Pageant Master.

July 5th 1958 was an historic moment in our country's history. It was the day our pioneering National Health Service (NHS) was born, bringing free healthcare to everyone. We have treasured it ever since, but never more so since March 2020 when the Coronavirus pandemic gripped the UK and utterly changed all our lives.

We were suddenly at war with a ruthless, invisible enemy and on the front line were our NHS doctors, nurses and paramedics, plus platoons of critical workers keeping our shops open and stocked, our streets safe and our essential services running.

Now we have a chance to show our gratitude to all NHS and frontline staff with an annual day of thanks, and remembrance of those who lost their lives because of this dreadful decease. The first NHS, Social Care and Frontline Workers' Day takes place on Monday, 5 July with a series of events involving every aspect of society......

GTC's Community Services & Communications Officer has explored options and put forward a proposed programme and costing based on the national commemorations (attached for the consideration of Members).

15. <u>GODALMING TOWN CENTRE AREA – PRESERVING THE PAST, PROTECTING THE PRESENT, PLANNING THE FUTURE – ITEM FOR DECISION</u>

Recommendation: Members to resolve to approve the adoption of the Godalming Town Centre Area, Preserving the Past, Protecting the Present, Planning the Future document as a supplement to the Council's Programme 2019-2023 document.

Members to receive a report prepared by the Town Clerk relating to a range of issues surrounding GTC activities in the Godalming Town Centre Area (attached for the information of Members).

If agreed, Members are requested to approve the document as a supplement to the Council's Programme 2019-2023 document as a basis for future planning and allocation of resource for the delivery of the issues and actions highlighted within the report.

16. COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY MONITORING REPORT- ITEM FOR NOTE

Members to receive the annual Community Infrastructure Levy Monitoring Report to 31 March 2021 (report attached for the information of Members).

17. RISK ASSESSMENT FOR SAFEGUARDING - ITEM FOR DECISION

The Audit Committee reviewed and updated the Council's Risk Assessment on Safeguarding (attached for the information of Members).

Members are requested to consider and, if agreed, to resolve to adopt the updated risk assessment.

18. COUNCIL COMMUNITY CENTRES – ITEM FOR DECISION

The Government's Roadmap out of lockdown will allow Community Centres to be re-opened from 12 April 2021.

The Facilities Supervisor has contacted regular weekly hirer's from pre-COVID for each Community Centre to determine whether they intend on returning, and if so, when they would like to return.

The results are as follows:

	WNC	BWP	PP
Immediate return	6	3	2
September return	6	7	
No response	4		4

Broadwater Park Community Centre – Currently the NHS hires the centre Monday to Friday during normal office hours. They have indicated that they would like to remain until summer whilst their normal venue is used as a vaccination centre. All but three regular hirers are evening users, and the three day users do not intend to return until September, so the Council should be able to accommodate all regular users without issue. Until all social distancing and group restrictions are lifted, Officers do not intend to resume ad hoc bookings.

The Pepperpot – our two most regular hirers for this venue have been able to continue with their hires throughout the pandemic. Officers do not anticipate any issues in accommodating the return of either ad hoc or other regular hirers to this venue.

Wilfrid Noyce Centre – four hirers who have indicated they would like to return will not be able to be fully accommodated due to the Community Store. Three other hirers have indicated that they will need help to rebuild their activities (all of whom were solid bookings with good record of payments pre-COVID). Until all social distancing and group restrictions are lifted, Officers do not intend to resume ad hoc bookings.

The Responsible Finance Officer has reviewed the scale of charges for 2021/22 (attached for the information of Members). This is largely what was approved for 2020/21 but not implemented due to COVID. Changes have been made to keep voluntary organisation rates at 50% of the standard rate.

Members are requested to:

- a) approve the scale of charges for Community Centres for 2021/22: and
- b) authorise the RFO to use her discretion in applying a discount to the rate charged to regular hirers, if required, to rebuild their activities (the discount is not to exceed 20% nor be applied for longer than 12 weeks). RFO to report back to the Policy & Management Committee on any such discounts given.

19. <u>AUTHORISATION OF THE CLERK</u>

TO AUTHORISE the Clerk to sign or, where appropriate to have sealed on behalf of the Town Council any orders, deeds, or documents necessary to give effect to any of the matters contained in the Reports received at this meeting or in any Resolution passed by the Council.

20. DATE OF NEXT MEETING

The date of the next Full Council meeting is scheduled to be held on Thursday, 13 May 2020 at 7.00pm; venue to be confirmed

21. ANNOUNCEMENTS

Brought forward by permission of the Chairman. Requests to be submitted prior to commencement of the meeting.



MODERN SLAVERY STATEMENT

PURPOSE AND SCOPE

The purpose of this statement is to support those in our community who may be held in slavery or servitude.

The Council will treat any concern or allegation regarding modern slavery seriously and with immediacy of action, treating victims and those supporting them with dignity and respect.

This policy applies to all Members, employees and those undertaking work on behalf of Godalming Town Council including any consultants, temporary and agency staff.

POLICY STATEMENT

Godalming Town Council fully supports and upholds the Universal Declaration of Human Rights, 1948, which states that:

"No one shall be held in slavery or servitude; slavery and the slave trade shall be prohibited in all their forms."

The Council understands that modern slavery is real and could be happening in our community.

The Council is fully committed to the elimination of unlawful trafficking and exploitation of people and recognises that there is no typical victim of slavery. Victims can be men, women and children of all ages and cut across the population, but that it is normally more prevalent amongst the most vulnerable, minority or socially excluded groups. In setting out this statement the Council aims to safeguard and protect the victims.

Godalming Town Council opposes slavery and human trafficking and never knowingly conducts business with partners, contractors, supply chain or employers involved in such practice. Any supplier wishing to conduct business with the Council must fulfil any obligations placed upon them by The Modern Day Slavery Act 2015. Any organisation, corporation, company, employer or individual who provide services to Godalming Town Council or the Godalming Joint Burial Committee who is found to knowingly undertake practices of modern day slavery will have their contract with GTC/JBC immediately terminated.

Godalming Town Council will immediately forward any concerns or allegations made to Councillors or Staff regarding Modern Slavery by using the online reporting system at https://www.modernslaveryhelpline.org.



Waverley Hoppa Community Transport Hospital Hoppa Annual Review 2020 2021

The following is an overview of activity concerning the Hospital Hoppa service supported via an annual SLA with Godalming Town Council.

- 24th March 2020, 1st national lockdown imposed due to Covid-19, all Hoppa transport services suspended from 25th March onwards.
- Single fare increased from £10.00 to £12.50 from 1st April 2020 on the Hospital Hoppa service. This decision was made well in advance of Covid-19, with literature printed and website revised.
- 6th April 2020 some Hoppa services such special educational needs school contracts for children of key workers, and non-emergency patient transport for South Central Ambulance Service and the Guildford & Waverley CCG, resumed operations, with the necessary risk assessments in place.
- When the Prime Minister reduced the social distancing restrictions from 2m to 1m, other Hoppa services resumed from 6th July 2020, including the Hospital Hoppa service. Due to the 1m minimum social distancing restriction, all services were and still are restricted to 5 seated passengers per vehicle.
- Due to many out-patient appointments either being cancelled or conducted over the phone, demand for the Hospital Hoppa service initially was low. Over the following months the demand slowly increased until lockdown 3.0. Please see the attached 2019/20 versus 2020/21 Passenger Stats spreadsheet.
- In January and February demand for the Hospital Hoppa service increased, partially due to requests for transport to G-Live and RSCH in Guildford for Covid-19 vaccinations. We anticipate this demand to continue through into May as many will return to G-Live, the RSCH or their GP Surgeries for their 2nd vaccinations.

Looking forward to 2021/22, as more of the population is vaccinated and thus protected, lockdown restrictions are lifted per the current Government timetable and we are not subject to further restrictions, we expect demand for the Hospital Hoppa service to return to pre-Covid levels by the end of the summer. This makes no allowances for public confidence, especially with older and more vulnerable members in the community, in using services like the Hospital Hoppa.

Steve Forward General Manager

Waverley Hoppa 19/20 Versus 20/21 Passenger Stats

Type of Service	Apr-19	Apr-20	May-19	May-20	Jun-19	Jun-20	Jul-19	Jul-20	Aug-19	Aug-20	Sep-19	Sep-20
Contracted Services	1593	216	2342	270	2599	396	3084	234	219	198	3126	3364
Group Bookings	0	0	16	0	30	0	10	0	8	0	246	0
Godalming DAR	312	0	357	0	320	0	374	104	321	113	304	154
Farnham DRT	646	0	740	0	649	0	752	445	720	415	689	521
Haslemere DAR	234	0	245	0	234	0	243	73	227	93	202	161
Cranleigh DAR	279	0	271	0	285	0	315	0	295	0	273	0
RSCH G&W CCG	58	75	49	113	64	144	74	150	63	144	116	139
Hospital Hoppa	69	0	91	0	97	0	98	23	125	36	117	25
SCAS NEPT	159	54	180	79	171	94	201	134	163	129	167	132
Totals	3350	345	4291	462	4449	634	5151	1163	2141	1128	5240	4496

Type of Service	Oct-19	Oct-20	Nov-19	Nov-20	Dec-19	Dec-20	Jan-20	Jan-21	Feb-20	Feb-21	Mar-20	Mar-21
Contracted Services	3403	3146	3632	4042	2608	2882	3548	2198	2666	1702	4334	
Group Bookings	0	0	0	0	1534	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Godalming DAR	389	143	356	119	280	123	328	73	314	104	189	
Farnham DRT	907	489	797	353	662	400	794	280	721	402	551	
Haslemere DAR	240	93	226	63	190	73	243	61	187	50	156	
Cranleigh DAR	263	54	303	33	223	69	249	36	201	59	148	
RSCH G&W CCG	149	153	133	138	145	150	141	110	113	114	87	
Hospital Hoppa	129	31	72	31	96	31	102	52	61	50	65	
SCAS NEPT	185	154	167	161	370	141	180	119	201	121	153	
Totals	5665	4263	5686	4940	6108	3869	5585	2929	4464	2602	5683	0



Supporting Our Community

GODALMING TOWN CENTRE AREA

Preserving the Past, Protecting the Present, Planning the Future

TABLE OF CONTENTS

TABLE OF	CONTENTS	-1-
GLOSSARY	OF TERMS	- 2 -
PART ONE	•	- 3 -
1.	Preamble	- 3 -
2.	Introduction	- 3 -
3.	Godalming Town Centre Conservation Area	- 3 -
4.	Important Features and Vistas	- 4 -
5.	Open Space and Landscape	- 4 -
6.	Community Use of the Town Centre Built Environment	- 6 -
7.	Street Furniture and Decluttering	- 6 -
8.	Public Art	- 7 -
9.	Economic Profile and Potential Forces for Change	- 7 -
PART TWO		- 9 -
10.	GTC's Role for the Town Centre Area Built and Green Environment	- 9 -
10.1.	Planning	- 9 -
10.2.	Article 4 Directive	- 9 -
10.3.	. Wiggins Yard Environmental Improvement Scheme	- 9 -
10.4.	. Guildford to Godalming Greenway – Cross Godalming Section	- 9 -
10.5.	Current Pedestrianisation	- 10 -
10.6.	Future Pedestrianisation	- 10 -
10.7.	. Crown Court Pedestrian Area	- 11 -
10.8.	Community Events – The Green Environment	- 11 -
10.9.	Community Events – Town Centre Built Environment	- 13 -
10.10	0. Floral Godalming	- 13 -
10.1	1. Signage, Rails, Bollards, Bells & Benches	- 13 -
10.12	2. The Pepperpot	- 14 -
10.13	3. Public Art	- 15 -
10.14	4. Regeneration and Supporting the Local Economy	- 15 -
10.1	5. Business Improvement District	- 15 -
10.10	6. Devolution of Public Assets	- 16 -
PART THR	EE	- 18 -
11.	Action Plan	- 18 -
12.	Table of Actions	- 18 -

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

Built Environment - encompasses all forms of building (housing, industrial, commercial, hospitals, schools etc.), and civil engineering infrastructure both above and below ground and includes the managed landscapes between and around buildings.

Community Wellbeing - the combination of social, economic, environmental, cultural, and political conditions identified by individuals and their communities as essential for them to flourish and fulfil their potential.

Socio-economic Strata - refers to the condition within a society where social classes are separated, or stratified, along economic lines.

Urban Life - *Urban life refers to the life of the people living in towns and cities.*

Place-shaping - a term coined in the Lyons Inquiry (2004-7) into the form, function and funding of local government in England. Lyons suggested that local government should act as the voice of a whole community and as "an agent of place"

Walkability - Walkability is a measure of how friendly an area is to walking. Walkability has health, environmental, and economic benefits.

Bikeability - Bikeability is (in line with its sibling term 'walkability') an indication of the ability of the urban infrastructure to support and foster cycling as a mode of transport and mobility.

Green environment - the natural environment within an urban area such as parks, verges, sports fields and other unbuilt areas.

Staycation – a collection of activities held during the first week of August to provide 'a holiday at home' for local residents.

Staycation Live - a music festival held over the first weekend of Staycation.

On-Line Retail - consumer retail purchases made via the internet.

Off-line Retail - consumer retail purchases made in a physical retail outlet such as a shop or market stall.

Public Works Loan Board - a lending facility operated on behalf of HM Treasury to provide loans to local authorities, and other specified bodies. Loans are made mainly for capital projects.

Social Return [on investments] - a principles-based method for measuring extra-financial value such as environmental or social value.

Permitted Development Rights - The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (the "GPDO 2015") is a Statutory Instrument, that grants planning permission for certain types of development such as change of use of offices to residential dwellings. Development undertaken in this way is referred to as permitted development.

Article 4 Direction Order - An Article 4 direction is made by a local planning authority to restrict the use of permitted development rights. An Article 4 Direction does not in itself prohibit any action but means that a landowner is required to seek planning consent whereas without the direction this would not be necessary.

Community Infrastructure Levy - The Community Infrastructure Levy is a charge levied by local authorities on new development in their area. It is an important tool to help deliver the infrastructure needed to support development.

Catch 22 Situation— a dilemma or difficult circumstance from which there is no escape because of mutually conflicting or dependent condition.

20 is Plenty - a campaign for a default speed of 20mph on residential streets and in town and village centres, without the need for physical calming.

Performing Rights Society – a partner organisation of PRS for Music, a British music copyright collective, which undertakes rights management for musical works on behalf of its members. This includes licencing venues for live musical performances.

SCC Members Community Allocation – a fund provided to each Surrey County Councillor to help residents, voluntary and community organisations deliver activities that benefitted local people in their neighbourhoods.

Business Improvement District - business led partnerships which are created through a ballot process to deliver additional services to local businesses. They can be a powerful tool to allow the business community and local authorities to work together to improve the local trading environment.

PART ONE

1. Preamble

This report aims to:

- Provide the context and raise awareness of some of the issues affecting the Town Centre area and how the Town Centre relates to Community well-being.
- Identify current activity being delivered by Godalming Town Council (GTC) to support the general well-being of residents and economic viability of the Town Centre area.
- Identify ways in which GTC can provide direct action, influence or support further improvements within the Town Centre area.

2. Introduction¹

The built environment has a significant impact on people's general feeling of well-being. In considering how the built environment or 'place' can impact on those whose lives it touches, decision makers would do well to consider that the very large majority of research evidence points in the same broad direction; better place quality adds value economically, socially and with regard to health and environmental outcomes. The impacts of place are profound, contribute benefits to society over short, medium and long-term time horizons, and reverberate throughout the lives of citizens across all socio-economic strata.

Place quality is not an aspiration only to be considered when things are good or only for the wealthy. Instead, as the research evidence indicates, it is a basic necessity of urban life with profound and far-reaching impacts on the lives of citizens today and tomorrow. It is so important to basic well-being that it should be the expectation of all. This knowledge can be used to advance the case for quality when place-shaping policy, project or investment decisions are being made.

A VERY strong positive association between place derived value of all types (health, social, economic and environmental) and six qualities: greenness in the built environment (notably the presence of trees, grass, water, and open space – the latter if of good quality); a mix of uses (notably the diversity of land uses within a neighbourhood); low levels of traffic; the walkability and bike ability of places (derived from their strategic street-based connectivity and the quality of the local public realm); the use of more compact (less sprawling and fragmented) patterns of development; and ready, convenient connection to a good public transport network.

In considering these very strong positive associations, the Godalming Town Centre area could potentially be described as the ideal location to represent all these qualities. However, there is a body of evidence that suggests car dependence and poor maintenance/dilapidation (including of green spaces) has an equally strong negative association as qualities to be avoided when shaping the built environment.

3. Godalming Town Centre Conservation Area

Godalming central retail area lies within the Godalming Town Centre Conservation Area (CA). The character of the CA relies on the many listed buildings in the compact historic core and contains a mix of uses, including retail, office and residential. There are 125 listed buildings, 15 heritage features and 2 buildings of local merit within the CA.

Overall, the CA appears to be in a good condition, but there are some buildings and locations which, due to condition, materials, street furniture and other factors currently detract from the CA. Whilst not all the remedies for these issues lie with GTC, there are areas, such as advocacy for good design and planning, the maintenance of street furniture and acting as the 'local eyes' for the reporting of

¹ Matthew Carmona (2019) Place value: place quality and its impact on health, social, economic and environmental outcomes, Journal of Urban Design, 24:1, 1-48, DOI: <u>10.1080/13574809.2018.1472523</u>

issues to the relevant authorities, that GTC can play a significant role in maintaining the character of the CA. Indeed, it could be argued that, if not GTC than who?

Connectivity to the open green spaces: the Phillips Memorial Park, the allotments and the churchyard, is also an important aspect of the CA, in particular the relationship with the River Wey and the Lammas Lands beyond, and should be considered in any review or plans for enhancing the public realm within the CA. This connectivity should play an important role in any consideration for projects that seek to link the main retail areas towards the green spaces, in particular the Wiggins Yard and Crown Court Environmental Improvement Projects.

4. Important Features and Vistas

The "Pepperpot" or Old Town Hall, owned by GTC, is an important landmark, which is represented as the "symbol of the town's independence" and used as the Town Council's logo. The Pepperpot is the historic and present-day focal point for public announcements and events. Included in the heritage features located within the CA is the tall iron hand lever pump at The Pepperpot, which provided a communal water supply before mains water was laid on. This hand pump, like the exterior of The Pepperpot was last painted and preserved over 10 years ago and is now in need of repainting. It is suggested that The Pepperpot, whether overtly acknowledged or not, is seen as a symbol of civic pride by many residents who will consider any lack of upkeep or maintenance as a dereliction of public responsibility by GTC.

Church Street has arguably the most character in Godalming with many 17th century timber framed buildings. This street also meanders to reveal the 12th century Grade 1 listed Church of Saint Peter and Saint Paul. The street furniture in the area around the church and iron stone pavement was replaced approx. 6 years ago and an additional public bench, which is well used, was installed.

Crown Court is a gateway location within the town centre and is used for public events such as markets, community activities and also houses the town centre's public toilets. It is surrounded by listed buildings with a walk-through arch constructed in the early 1950s from the original materials of earlier buildings and flagstone paving. This area is owned by Waverley Borough Council (WBC) with an agreement in place for GTC to manage its use for community events. Along with its historical character, its position adjacent to the town's main car park makes this an ideal location for small 'markets' and community events. It is suggested that this area is under-utilised and that options for enhancing the area and making it more inviting and relevant should be explored. Likewise, in considering the positive benefits of linking the urban environment to the green environment of The Burys, Phillips Memorial Park and river side, any improvements in this area should aim to achieve a sense of flow between the two.

One of the key characteristics of the CA is the "yards" located behind the main streets. Many of these "yards" would have housed workshops in the past. The "yards" are mainly in private ownership, one exception being Wiggins Yard where the maintenance responsibilities are undefined, resulting in the historic cobbles needing substantial works to make the passage between Bridge Street and The Burys useable by pedestrians, including wheelchair users.

5. Open Space and Landscape

This section is concerned not just with the 'fixed' built environment but also the influences on the landscape through interventions such as 'Floral Godalming' and 'In Bloom'. Colourful flower planters, window boxes and hanging baskets within a built environment can create a stronger sense of pride of place, contributing to a cleaner and greener place to live and visit, with higher environmental awareness.²

² https://www.rhs.org.uk/get-involved/britain-in-bloom/why

If parks and green spaces are well managed, research has shown that communities use their local spaces more, have better relationships with their local councils and take some pride in the area where they live.3

Parks and green spaces contribute to all aspects of health and well-being including increasing levels of physical activity which could alleviate pressures on the NHS. Simply being outside in a green space can promote mental wellbeing, relieve stress, overcome isolation, improve social cohesion and alleviate physical problems.4

Parks provide spaces where people can get some fresh air, go for a walk, play, exercise or just enjoy the surroundings. Research by Keep Britain Tidy found that: "Visits to green spaces with friends and extended family groups were highly valued for enabling social bonding in largely natural and frequently picturesque surroundings."5

Parks and green space can provide schools with a living, breathing, fully interactive and continually changing outdoor classroom; a wonderful resource with which to support curriculum activities. Access is easy and because they exist locally, visits can be frequent allowing longer-term projects to be undertaken. The Local Park or green space has become an increasingly popular destination for study of the natural environment as well as social and urban development.⁶ In this context, GTC has supported Moss Lane School in accessing outside space. A final thought in support of the importance of the town centre area green spaces comes from the Urban Parks Forum which contends that green spaces support childhood and provide a freedom so often denied in congested traffic-strewn streets. They can help counter the negative effects of urban growth on the public environment and encourage children to become better stewards of the environment in the future.⁷

The Phillips Memorial Park (which includes The Burys Field) is the only open green space in the CA. The Phillips Memorial Cloister itself is a quieter space but unfortunately has been subject to vandalism in the past. This might be because the structure is less open and has limited natural surveillance. On the whole the park is well maintained by WBC and in the summertime many people use the park and enjoy events such as the Sunday 'Music in the Park' concerts and the Staycation Live Music Festival. There are additional structures/buildings such as the bandstand, the bowls green and hut, the church and the children's playground which also add to the ambience of the area. The allotments also add variety to this area. As well as the traditional use of the bandstand for concerts, residents take advantage of the covered structure of the bandstand for a variety of exercise activities. The bandstand and Phillips Memorial Park are used on average for less than 100 hours per year for organised public events (including Concerts, Staycation, Town Show etc.). Greater use of these public realm assets should be explored.

Most of the CA, including the "vards", is accessible to the public with the CA being reasonably permeable for pedestrians. The key gateways by foot into the centre include Crown Court car park, Wiggins Yard, Lower South Street, Oglethorpe Court Passageway, Queens Street, Wharf Street, Station Approach, Mill Lane, Pound Lane and Church Street. Of these Wiggins Yard and Oglethorpe Court Passageway are the least accessibility friendly routes, Oglethorpe Court Passageway because of a flight of steps with no adjacent ramp and Wiggins Yard by lack of maintenance.

The main footpaths on the High Street were subject to an improvement scheme in the early 1990s. They have red brick paving, granite setts in certain parts and traditional kerbstones. There is a mixture of signage including traditional finger posts. On the High Street there are traditional style guard rails and bollards, which are also utilised by GTC to support Floral Godalming planters.

³ CABE Space. (2010). Urban Green Nation: Building the Evidence Base https://www.designcouncil.org.uk/sites/default/files/asset/document/urban-green-nation 0 0.pdf

⁴ CABE. (2009). Future Health: Sustainable places for health and well-being

⁵ Keep Britain Tidy. (2010). People Places and their Green Spaces

⁶ Urban Parks Forum. (2002). Your Parks: the benefits of parks and green space

⁷ Urban Parks Forum. (2002). Your Parks: the benefits of parks and green space

The ownership of the street furniture and public realm infrastructure such as bells, bollards and rails has been the focus of much dispute, resulting in GTC becoming custodians by default. The red brick paving is no longer produced resulting in an increasingly patchwork look to the pavements. The granite kerbs in the High Street and Bridge Street are generally in good condition. However, due to the size and frequency of delivery vehicles driving on and off of the loading bay areas which necessitate 'bumping' over the kerbs, an increasing number of the kerb stones are becoming displaced. The mounting of the pavement area also causes damage to the crossover drains. Whilst the buildings along Godalming High Street and Bridge Street have historic character, the 1990's design of the pavements and carriageway have not stood the test of time, are dated and increasingly challenging to maintain. Although beyond GTC's ability to fund, the Town Council does have a role in lobbying the Highways Authority and Principal Authorities for more than 'make do and mend' patchwork repairs to the Godalming CA and should be seeking wholescale regeneration of the low-level street scene of Godalming High Street, Queen Street, Wharf Street and Bridge Street, including the provision of 'shared space' and pedestrianisation as a means of traffic control and reduction.

Traffic is one way on the main roads: Bridge Street, Wharf Street, the High Street and Church Street. This, in addition to Flambard Way, has helped reduce traffic through the CA. Traffic calming, in the form of speed bumps and pedestrianisation of the High Street on Saturdays, has been implemented. Additionally, since May 2020 an 18-month Temporary Road Order (TRO) has been available for use to aid social distancing requirements. During periods of operation the TRO has significantly reduced the vehicular obstructions along the main section of the High Street and on the whole was well received by residents. As indicated by the research evidence mentioned in the introduction, low levels of traffic along with improved walkability and bikeability are positive associates of wellbeing in place-shaping and consideration should be given to options for improving the pedestrian experience within the central retail area of the Town Centre.

6. Community Use of the Town Centre Built Environment

The Town Centre's built and green environment is used by residents and visitors to Godalming to access day-to-day facilities, but it is also used to provide a focal point for a variety of organised activities as well as less formal and more ad-hoc events.

For a number of years, Godalming has had a programme of annual events held on the High Street & Church Street and associated areas, The Burys or the Phillips Memorial Park. Additionally, in more recent times GTC has also organised or managed events that have been based within the Crown Court pedestrian area.

The majority of these events are either totally free at the point of entry or at worse seek a donation to help cover the organiser's fixed costs (Town Show and Staycation Live), the only current community event that has an entry fee, is the Godalming Community Run. 2020 saw the cancellation of all the 'traditional' community events and it is likely that the majority will also be either cancelled or rescheduled for 2021. With a two-year hiatus, a possibility exists that some events will not continue or if they do so, the organisers may take the opportunity provided by the enforced break to 're-brand' or alter the delivery model of their event.

7. Street Furniture and Decluttering

It is important to reinforce the distinctiveness of Godalming through a clear and consolidated approach to street furniture, including bollards, lamp posts, benches and litter bins. In order to ensure consistency throughout the CA, as far as reasonably practicable, coordinated street furniture has been implemented throughout the town by GTC and WBC. However, improving the CA does not just mean the installation of new coordinated street furniture, it also means rationalising what is already there and removing or repositioning signage and street furniture that is no longer required or used.

With the exception of litter bins which have been replaced by both GTC and WBC, the maintenance of the public realm within the CA has predominately fallen to GTC to manage. Prior to 2019, this was undertaken by out-sourcing repairs. Following the appointment of GTC direct maintenance staff, the repair and refurbishment of the public realm street furniture will now be, wherever possible and safe to do so, undertaken by the GTC maintenance team.

In relation to highways infrastructure, GTC remains actively engaged with SCC Highways for the identification and reporting of highway defects as well as working with Surrey Members to identify areas in need of improvement or intervention by SCC Highways.

8. Public Art

There is a notable absence of physical street art within Godalming. However, there are a number of places where art could add to the street scene, such as Crown Court, the public realm next to The Red Lion pub or the entrance to Wharf Street from Flambard Way, where the circular 'plinth' on the west side of the street was, when the town centre scheme was originally envisaged, intended to be a location for public art.

A number of organisations, including the Centre for Active Design, set out that a vibrant public art programme offers a range of benefits and opportunities for enhancing the urban environment, increasing the use and enjoyment of public space and building social cohesion. Public Art provides a means of celebrating culture, diverse communities and shared history. It contributes to civic pride and help forge a positive identity for the town. Through art the town can project its collective identity and vision, while individuals and community groups are also empowered to express their unique identities.

Public art supports the creative industries, creating opportunities for artists and designers. Public art can also:

- · energise public spaces;
- · expand thinking;
- transform the places where we live, work and play;
- · create places of interaction; and
- lead to a sense of civic pride.

However, in the 21st century, public art does not need to be considered as statues and monuments whose meanings fade into obscurity. In this context public art is not just art displayed within the street scene, it can be any art form, from physical art such as sculpture, paintings or drawings to performance art such as drama, dance and speech. It can be permanently displayed as part of the street scene or it could be transient such as performance art on the bandstand or any form of art displayed or provided in a publicly accessible building such as the Museum, shops, cafes, restaurants and pubs etc.

9. Economic Profile and Potential Forces for Change

Waverley in general is an affluent area with a buoyant local economy and low level of unemployment. Godalming town centre is a mix of retail, office and residential. The majority of homes in this part of the Ward are privately or social rented. Despite the economic shock experienced by the retail sector during the Coronavirus pandemic, the level of unoccupied retail units remains relatively low (8% Feb 2021). There remains a strong presence of shops and residents continue to be served by independent butchers, bakers, greengrocers, delicatessens, clothing stores, hardware stores and cafes. However, whilst not having been impacted by the closure of major multinational fashion retailers as deeply as larger regional centres, changes to retail banking and other business closures have resulted in a number of retail units becoming vacant.

Although high streets and town centres have continuously evolved over the last 100+ years, the rate of change over the last decade has significantly increased due to the speed of changing consumer habits. As with many other town centres, Godalming retailers are facing the challenge of changing purchasing habits, which quickly accelerated during 2020 and the first quarter of 2021. Online sales penetration has continued to reach new heights, and according to the Office for National Statistics they accounted for a 31.9% share of total UK retail sales in the last quarter of 2020. However, although some retailers saw online sales rise enough to counteract losses from in-store transactions, for many, this placed a further squeeze on margins due to the incurred costs of delivery/returns. As would be expected, fashion and footwear retailers were disproportionately impacted by Covid

restrictions. This impact has been seen in Godalming with the closure of a number of national clothing retailers. Of the various sectors, homeware retailers continued to report promising growth figures mainly due to a very strong residential sales market and homeworking triggering additional home improvements. Ongoing growth has cemented objectives regarding store expansion for some, including B&M, who opened 16 new stores in the period, with an additional 18 expected in the current quarter. The challenge for Godalming and WBC economic development strategy, is attracting expanding sectors to replace those whose retail model is no longer viable. Questions that need to be asked are what attracts companies such as B&M to a location and is there anything that GTC can do to improve the attractiveness for companies to locate to Godalming?

Historically Godalming has had a relatively low rate of change of shops which has provided a fairly stable retail offering. Indicators such as lease lengths dropping to record lows could be seen as part of the changing pattern and uncertainty surrounding the future direction of off-line retail. For new high street deals, leases averaged 7.6 years in 2020, down -7.1% on the 2019 average. It is interesting to note that although local authorities might not be as active investors as they once were in the commercial property sector due to the changes in the Public Works Loan Board criteria for loans, this does not seem to have affected their appetite for the retail sector. This is because much activity centres on buying within their locality, and thus it can be justified as a regeneration focused decision rather than a purely income focused one. However, while the rationale amongst local authorities has definitely swung towards "social return" being more important than income return, such assets also need to be good income generators to service the borrowing while the council focuses on supporting the continued viability of its town or high street's retail offer.

At a macro level, there was a slight resurgence in investment activity in high street shops in the final quarter of 2020. However, 55% of the transactions were on food stores which are seen as a low-risk, Covid- defensive segment of the market. The overall volume of shop assets traded in the second half of 2020 does indicate that there is some confidence amongst investors. Therefore, it is important that Godalming is seen to be a positive investment opportunity and one that has resisted a spiral of decline.

It is expected that that shop unit freehold purchasing and leasing activity will be biased towards the second half of the year, once social distancing measures have reduced, and non-essential retail has reopened. Sizeable questions remain around retailer viability and how rent levels etc are priced in, but where there are supportable income streams in the right locations it is expected that there will be an increasing level of private investor interest. That said property companies will continue to be more focused on assets where there is an opportunity for conversion, typically to residential uses.⁸

This latter aspect has already been experienced in parts of Godalming. However, the ability to by-pass local accountability and decision making to re-purpose existing retail and office space is, thanks to the existence of the Conservation Area (CA), not available to developers via the Permitted Development Rights route and therefore planning applications must be submitted for any Change of Use within the bounds of the Godalming Town Centre CA. Likewise, the Article 4 Direction, which was made in May 2020, removes Permitted Development Rights for the conversion of office buildings to residential dwellings in the Article 4 Directive area around Godalming Railway Station.

_

⁸ https://pdf.euro.savills.co.uk/uk/commercial-retail-uk/shopping-centre-and-high-street---q4-2020.pdf

PART TWO

10. GTC's Role for the Town Centre Area Built and Green Environment

GTC is involved in a number of activities in relation to the town centre area built and green environment including the use of the town centre's open spaces.

10.1. Planning

GTC reversed a previous decision to disband its planning committee by the establishment in January 2020 of the Environment & Planning Committee (E&P). The E&P is responsible for providing advocacy on behalf of local residents to ensure that the character of the Town Centre CA is not adversely impacted by developments. – **Action 1.**

10.2. Article 4 Directive

An Article 4 Direction restricts the scope of permitted development rights in relation to a particular area or site. Where an article 4 direction is in effect, a planning application may be required for development that would otherwise have been permitted development. Within the Borough of Waverley, there are currently only two areas subject to an Article 4 Direction. The first area was established for Beacon Hill and was set up as a pilot scheme, with the Godalming Railway Station area being the first location outwith of the pilot scheme to be subject to an Article 4 Direction order.

Although the making of an Article 4 Direction is the responsibility of the Local Planning Authority, the Godalming Article 4 Direction resulted from direct lobbying by GTC, who provided evidence-based data in support of the Article 4 Directive. https://www.waverley.gov.uk/Services/Planning-and-building/Planning-strategies-and-policies/Article-4-directions The E&P has a responsibility to challenge any Prior Notification Notices for development within the Godalming Article 4 Direction area. – **Action 2.**

10.3. Wiggins Yard Environmental Improvement Scheme

The Wiggins Yard Environmental Improvement Scheme is an aspiration for a joint venture between WBC and GTC. The project's main priority is to improve the pedestrian link between Bridge Street and The Burys Field, which is safe to use by all within our community, including wheelchair users and those using buggies and mobility scooters. The project is predicated on the preservation of the historic setting of Wiggins Yard and the reuse of the existing cobbles and setts.

The outcome of this project will contribute to improved connectivity between the built and green environment within the Town Centre area. To date WBC has led on this project in relation to legal issues, the commissioning of viability studies and securing funding to be used toward this infrastructure project via an S106 financial contribution. Whilst a number of issues are still to be resolved, it is expected that if all pre-conditions are resolved, GTC will take on responsibility for the delivery of the works and future upkeep of the 'Wiggins Yard' passageway. – Action 3

An aside of this project will be to provide a pedestrian link into Bridge Street for cyclists who have made use of the cross-town cycle link to come into town and have 'parked' their bike in the shelter located outside of WBC offices.

10.4. Guildford to Godalming Greenway – Cross Godalming Section

The Guildford to Godalming Greenway is potentially an important step towards providing a practical alternative option for travel between the two towns, but equally important is the opportunity to provide a safe route for local residents into the town centre.

The Greenway aims to provide a route suitable for day-today activities such as getting to school, going shopping, commuting to work or simply enjoying time out in the fresh air⁹.

The Greenway project is not only supported by GTC but by both Waverley and Guildford Borough Councils. In July 2018 GTC agreed that Officers should work with the Godalming Cycle Campaign to explore options to enable consideration of the project for Community Infrastructure Funding. Whilst the opportunities for funding have experienced a number of setbacks, the project continues to resonate and find traction amongst both decision makers and the wider public.

In October 2020, GTC agreed to fund a Design and Feasibility Study for the 'Cross Godalming' section of the route, which passes through the Town Centre area green environment. In providing the grant for the Design & Feasibility Study, GTC requested that the study considers what route could link the Greenway from the Phillips Memorial Park to the High Street. Such a link could help reduce private vehicle traffic with the Town Centre, thus making it a more pleasant experience for pedestrians within the Town Centre built environment. – **Action 4**

10.5. Current Pedestrianisation

Since 2001 Godalming High Street, between its junction with Queen Street and its junction with Church Street has been subject to a Permanent Road Traffic Order. The effect of the order is to restrict traffic on a Saturday between 10am and 4pm from entering the controlled area. There are a number of exemptions including public transport buses and vehicles belonging to residents or workers who have a designated parking place within the controlled area.

Access to the restricted area is controlled by a rising bollard, which for safety reasons must be manually operated on each first occasion of daily operation. On a Saturday this operation is carried out by the On-Street Parking Enforcement Officer. Subsequent lowering of the bollard is achieved by use of an access control card. In accordance with the terms of the Permanent Road Traffic Order, GTC acts as an agent for SCC for the issuing of the access cards.

In May 2020 an additional Temporary Road Traffic Order was issued to support Social Distancing measures that permitted traffic restrictions within the same area between 10.30am and 3.30pm Mon-Sat. The main differences being that the exemptions were widened to permit delivery vehicles access and that GTC staff carried out the daily activation of the bollard between Mon-Fri. In extending the operation between Mon-Fri a greater number of access cards are required in order to accommodate business requirements that had not been required just for the Saturday operations.

Whilst the bollard was not operated Mon-Fri during periods of national lockdown when non-essential shops were closed, it remained operational on a Saturday in accordance with the Permanent Order. With reopening of non-essential shops expected on the 12 April, GTC will recommence the weekday operation of the bollard through to 21 June when, unless social distancing requirements remain extant, the bollard operation will revert to Saturday's only as the purpose of the Temporary Order will no longer exist. However, if social distancing requirements of some description remain in force, GTC will seek further guidance on whether the Temporary Road Traffic Order should remain in operation. – **Action 5**

10.6. Future Pedestrianisation

Once the Temporary Road Traffic Order falls away, either through its purpose no longer existing, or through time expiry of its maximum period of operation, the limit of traffic

⁹ http://www.guildfordgodalminggreenway.com

restrictions within Godalming High Street will fall back onto those permitted by the Permanent Order.

During the period of operation of the Temporary Road Traffic Order the overwhelming consensus of nearly 2000 users of the High Street surveyed by GTC found the extended restrictions to be a positive benefit. This is in keeping with the evidence highlighted at paragraph 1 regarding the positive association of low levels of traffic, walkability and bikeability. The Temporary Road Traffic Order put into practice actions that had been discussed for many years but not implemented due to a classic Catch 22 situation. Without evidence further restrictions could not be justified, without implementing the restrictions evidence could not be attained!

However, it should be noted that the operation of the extended restrictions was not without issue. With the increased residential population of the Town Centre area and reliance by businesses on just in time deliveries, the logistic challenges and potential disruption to residents and businesses are significantly greater than when the Permanent Order was granted in 2001. That said, it could also be argued that the benefits that could be derived are also significantly greater than in 2001.

The 'pedestrianisation' or more correctly the Road Traffic Restriction Order required to make permanent amendments to the current traffic arrangements lies with Surrey County Council. However, it could be argued that if GTC considers that extending the Road Traffic Restrictions granted in 2001 would be beneficial to the well-being of residents and businesses then it has a responsibility to advocate those benefits to SCC and take a lead on promoting traffic reduction measures within the town centre.

Whilst the physical restriction of some traffic would help to improve the environment, so could the control of traffic speed within the Town Centre area. Speed control for all traffic within the whole of the Town Centre area could be achieved through the implementation of an area wide speed restriction such as advocated by the "20 is Plenty' campaign. – **Action 6**

10.7. Crown Court Pedestrian Area

As stated earlier, Crown Court pedestrian area is a gateway location which has the potential to become a focal point for community activity, be it increased market style events, as a showcase location for the performing arts, or indeed just as a simple but pleasant resting point to sit and talk with friends. However, it also has the potential to become a linkway to provide flow from the built environment to the green environment.

GTC does have a stake in Crown Court in that it has the leases of, and manages, the Crown Court public toilets. GTC also organises, manages or is a partner organisation for the majority of the community events that are held within the town centre, including the Friday pop-up markets, the Farmers' Markets, Spring, Summer and Christmas Festivals, all of which utilise Crown Court. However, GTC does not have ownership of Crown Court pedestrian area, and therefore can only act as an advocate for improvements to this area. Such advocacy may, if the Council felt it would benefit residents, extend to financial support to the owners for improvements through the use of Neighbourhood CIL funding.

In recognition of its position to provide advocacy for environmental improvements to this key location, in September 2020, GTC agreed to establish a working group to explore ideas and options relating to the Crown Court area. – **Action 7**

10.8. Community Events – The Green Environment

Crown Court pedestrian area and the High Street are not the only locations within the town Centre area used to host community events. The three main festivals plus the annual town show all utilise Church Street as well as Crown Court and the High Street. The annual Remembrance Parade also uses the High Street and Church Street but also gathers at the War Memorial in the Phillips Memorial Park.

The Phillips Memorial Park hosts a number of events throughout the summer months, most notable of which are the Music in the Park concerts held each Sunday, 3pm to 5pm between May & September at the Godalming Bandstand, The Rotary Club's Duck Race, The Godalming Community Run and the Staycation Live Music Festival held over two days in August. Whilst GTC supports all these events, all except the Godalming Run utilise the Godalming Bandstand.

Godalming Bandstand is owned by GTC, although the land it sits upon is leased at a peppercorn rent from WBC. The Bandstand is licensed for regulated entertainment. However, whilst GTC may give permission for the use of the bandstand, permission is required from WBC for any associated activities within the Phillips Memorial Park. This is a protective arrangement to safeguard the park. Whilst GTC does not pay for the use of the Park (including The Burys Field) for each occasion of use, it does pay an annual fee to cover administrative costs incurred by WBC to process land use permits for GTC and other community organised events.

The Bandstand is used by a wide cross section of the community, be it people using it for early morning yoga, exercise routines, family picnics or just as a sheltered meeting place. Although the Bandstand does have a schedule of charges set against it use, apart from the Music in the Park concerts who pay for approx. 52 hours of use per annum, the reality is that no other fees are collected for the use of the Bandstand. It could be argued that the one organisation that is charged provides the greatest community benefit from the use of the bandstand, with many hundreds if not thousands of residents and visitors each year enjoying the Sunday afternoon concerts. Additionally, GTC also recovers the cost of the Performing Rights Society licence fee from the concert organisers. In arranging the concerts, the organisers not only need to find sponsors for the bands, they also need to raise funds to pay the hire charges and the performing rights fee. In considering the community benefits derived from the provision of these free to attend public concerts, GTC may wish to review the application of a hire fee for community use of the Bandstand, and whether such fee should be limited to the recovery of the cost of the Performing Rights Society licence fee. The cost of the electricity is paid by the concert organisers. – **Action 8**

The Burys Field forms part of The Phillips Memorial Park. The main activities taking place at the field are skateboarding and youth football. Although WBC owns, maintains and manages the field, including sports bookings, the flood lights are powered from the Wilfrid Noyce Centre (WNC). The current floodlights were provided by grants from SCC Member's Communication Allocation and a grant from WBC with GTC arranging for the installation works. Whilst the lights are adequate for training, they would be improved by the repair of a defective light column (requiring the replacement of the underground power supply cable). – **Action 9**

When required, water and power is also provided from the WNC for community events, such as the Town Show and St John's Spring Fair, held on The Burys Field. GTC makes no charge for this provision. However, where a community event also requires the use of the WNC, that is provided via grant aid in kind.

With the combined organised community usage of The Phillips Memorial Pak and Burys Field, excluding football training and matches, being less than 100 hours per annum, it could be argued that these are underutilised community assets and that it should be possible to hold a greater number of community events at these locations. Such events could include the Godalming Green Gala, to be held for the first time in August 2021. There are also opportunities for WBC to permit more commercial events such as, amongst other activities, outdoor cinema, which was successfully arranged in 2019, funfairs and circus. - **Action 10**

10.9. Community Events - Town Centre Built Environment

GTC recognises the importance of events within the community and stated its commitment to their delivery, both directly and indirectly by adopting a clear policy position to support community events.

Due to the Coronavirus pandemic, it was not possible to deliver upon this commitment in 2020. However, GTC hopes to be able to resume community events in 2021 starting with the Farmers' Markets in April when non-essential retail is to be allowed. If the recovery maintains the trajectory outlined by the Government, it is anticipated that the Music in the Park concerts will resume on 27 June, and that the first major GTC community event will be the Green Gala in August 2021. The Round Table's Town Show is expected to be held on Saturday, 19 September and the Christmas Festival is expected to be held on the 27 November. Whilst not quite the full slate of annual events, it is hoped that they will provide a launchpad to the continuance of Godalming's collective community spirit.

Looking forward to 2022 and beyond, GTC is seeking to hold a number of new events including the Godalming Gig and the Godalming Fringe. Additionally, GTC will be looking to work with other community groups and organisations to join in the national celebrations of Her Majesty Queen Elizabeth II Platinum Jubilee, 2-5 June 2022. – **Action 11**

10.10. Floral Godalming

Floral Godalming softens the built environment within the town centre built up environs, provides colour and interest, helps support pollinating insects and provides a sense of civic pride and well-being, especially when the effort involved in Floral Godalming is recognised by external organisations such as South East in Bloom.

The troughs, baskets and planters are installed on rails and bollards with the town centre, as well as a number of public buildings and complements those businesses and property owners who also strive to brighten up the area with floral displays. The flower troughs etc are planted up, installed, watered and maintained by GTC staff in as economical and sustainable way as possible. However, whilst GTC does seek to attract sponsorship of the floral displays, in terms of staff time, infrastructure and the cost of the plants etc, the majority of the costs lie with GTC. It is the aspiration of GTC to expand Floral Godalming to cover a wider area, in particular the town centre approach roundabouts at the Inn on the Lake and Meadrow/Bridge Road/Chalk Road. The Town Council also wishes to see the pedestrian approaches to the town benefit from Floral Godalming through the installation of flower troughs on the pedestrian safety barriers around the pedestrian refuges located by the Chalk Road roundabout and the pedestrian crossing points located along Flambard Way. – **Action 12**

As the scheme expands, the supporting infrastructure and staff time will also need to expand. This could be in the form of a community greenhouse located in the rear garden of Broadwater Park Community Centre that could support community growers 'Godalming Growers' to produce plants from seed. Whilst there would be costs in setting up such a structure to support this type of community involvement, and there would still be a need for GTC staff resource for oversight and support, these should be balanced against the longer-term benefits from greater community involvement in Floral Godalming. – **Action 13**

10.11. Signage, Rails, Bollards, Bells & Benches

Following the refurbishment of the High Street in the late 1990's by SCC, the maintenance of the installed infrastructure, signage, rails, bollards, bells and benches has been an issue of much debate between a number of authorities. Whilst the maintenance of the footpaths and carriageway clearly lies with SCC highways, the maintenance and repair of the street furniture has been less clear, resulting in its deterioration.

In 2013/14 GTC worked with SCC to implement some of the outcomes from the Town Centre CA appraisal, which included the removal of redundant street furniture, the installation of new,

or the relocation of some existing furniture to where it would provide a greater benefit, the repair and replacement of damaged items and the repainting of all remaining items.

Since that time, GTC has been the custodian of the town centre area street furniture, especially since the introduction of Floral Godalming, which relies upon this infrastructure. It is now approaching 7 years since the last full audit and targeted maintenance program. With GTC now having the benefit of a directly employed maintenance capability, during 2021 it is planned to conduct a full audit, repair and repaint of the existing street furniture and to establish a future maintenance cycle.

The fingerpost signage within the CA was audited in 2012 with some redundant signs being removed and others 'repointed' and additional fingers added where necessary. The town centre fingerposts and signage should be considered in the round with the fingerposts installed by WBC along the riverside walk and the Phillips Memorial Park as well as directional and info-signage and maps located at the railway station and WBC car parks. Any audit of GTC signage should incorporate all signage, irrespective of installer, and look to ensure accuracy of information. – **Action 14**

10.12. The Pepperpot

As indicated at paragraph 4, The Pepperpot as an iconic building in the ownership of GTC should be well maintained, although the interior has recently been renovated, the exterior is beginning to show signs of age and is in need of repainting. Additionally, the bell stick needs repairing which can only be carried out if scaffolding is erected to gain access to the cupola – **Action 15**

GTC should investigate the possibility of installing 'fixed' tables and benches in the area around The Pepperpot for use by town centre visitors. Public seating with tables in this area could add vibrancy to the immediate area and provide an outside seating area for patrons of a number of small café's and food outlets who do not have outside space. – **Action 16**

Buildings of Local Merit

Godalming has many beautiful buildings which contribute greatly to the individual appeal of the town. While many of Godalming's buildings are already protected by listed building status, there are others that do not meet the Department of National Heritage's listing criteria but could be recognised as being of importance to Godalming.

There are only 2 buildings of local merit (BLMs) within the CA, at 96 and 117 High Street [96 is currently occupied by Arthouse Unlimited and 117 by McAllister Thomas Fine Arts]. Both are Georgian, 2 storey, red brick or rendered with original windows. They have retail/restaurant use on the ground floor. They are well preserved and maintained and fit in well in the street scene. Under the National Planning Policy Framework, BLMs are considered to be designated heritage assets. ¹⁰

There are no additional planning controls for BLMs but, the identification does mean it is a material consideration in planning applications. Although BLMs are adopted by WBC acting as the local planning authority, it is for the responsibility of the local town or parish council for going through the process to identify BLMs.¹¹

Godalming Town Council could, as exampled by Cranleigh and Farnham, take a local lead in the identification of BLMs. If the Council were to put forward a scheme to identify potential BLMs, it is suggested that it does so in collaboration with the Godalming Trust and Godalming Museum. Any such scheme should not be limited to the town centre area but should cover the civic parish of Godalming. – **Action 17**

¹⁰ WBC – Godalming Town Centre Conservation Area Appraisal September 2013, para 3.6

¹¹ https://www.waverley.gov.uk/Services/Planning-and-building/Heritage-trees-and-design/Buildings-of-Local-Merit

10.13. Public Art

Godalming has a thriving arts community, be it art group collectives where individual artists collaborate to create exhibitions, commercial galleries, artisan craft makers, drama groups or artistic performers. However, whilst their individual contributions are greatly appreciated and admired by those who are fortunate enough to know about them, as a collective their impact upon the town could be so much greater.

There are a number of community forums who seek to represent and promote a shared interest e.g., Sports Godalming, the Godalming Green Forum, but at present there is no forum or collective representation of the arts community. — **Action 18**

10.14. Regeneration and Supporting the Local Economy

GTC, in common with all other Town & Parish Councils, has very few statutory duties. However, it does hold The General Power of Competence. The General Power of Competence (GPC) was introduced by the Localism Act 2011 and took effect in February 2012. In simple terms, it gives councils the power to do anything an individual can do provided it is not prohibited by other legislation.

The GPC will allow GTC to support its community in difficult times to arrest and prevent a perception of decline within the town centre retail area, manage change and be a positive actor in building back the retail and business base and working for greater economic growth and resilience in the local communities. The GPC provides both a legal power on which to act and/or giving greater confidence to work in new and innovative ways.

The narrative set out in this paper and the action highlighted below are all within the power of GTC to enact. Whilst individually, each area is a laudable aim unto itself, combined they provide a strong message that Godalming is a resilient community, that is capable of adapting to economic and societal changes, thus avoiding an actual or perceived environment of decline.

The recovery from the economic impact of the Coronavirus pandemic within our community can only be achieved by working in partnership with others. The existing business community has a vital part to play in ensuring it provides a welcoming and supportive environment to customers and clients, that its offering meets their needs and the service provided is such that they feel the benefits of 'supporting local'.

GTC's role is, as far as possible, to ensure that Godalming town centre remains a visually attractive and vibrant location for business to operate. Godalming needs to be a location of first choice and not one of last resort. By doing so, GTC provides the tools for Business Waverley¹² to work to attract new businesses to Godalming. – **Action 19**

10.15. Business Improvement District

With a business turnover of over £4.9 billion, and the highest density of businesses in Surrey, Waverley punches above its weight when it comes to business. ¹³ That is not to say that there is not more that could be done to support the business community or that the business community should not look at options to support themselves.

One option for the business community to develop resilience and to ensure that Godalming is a location of first choice for customers, clients and businesses looking for new opportunities, is to identify a programme of improvements that will enhance the business environment and then to seek to implement those improvement projects via a Business Improvement District (BID).

¹² https://www.businesswaverley.co.uk/en-GB

¹³ https://www.businesswaverley.co.uk/en-GB/page/5d95c2ca0f0bdc187fdb7951

Waverley Borough Council has supported the local Chambers of Commerce in conducting a feasibility and viability study for the creation of BID areas. As part of that study GTC, along with a number of other businesses and the Godalming & District Chamber of Commerce, identified a viable BID area. The next stage of the BID process is to establish the BID criteria, this would include the aims of the BID, i.e., what are the project objectives and costs. From the establishment of what businesses wish the BID to provide and the cost of doing so, it is possible to determine the required levy to be applied to local business rates and the minimum business rate threshold for paying the BID levy.

Although the establishment of a BID area was first mooted in 2018, the enforced closure of businesses during 2020 put its progress on hold. It is expected that WBC and the Chambers of Commerce within Waverley will recommence work on the BID in September 2021.

As a main provider of community events and infrastructure, as well as a potential payee of the BID Levy, GTC does have an interest in the BID process. However, it should be noted that although a BID can provide events and services to benefit a business area, such provision should not be a replacement for the events, activities or services already provided. That is not to say that the BID cannot contribute to improved or expand provision, or if successful commission the provision of additional services from GTC.

Whilst the details of how or whether the BID process is taken forward is yet to be determined, a consideration for its development is the cost of establishing the evidence base and BID prospectus to take to referendum. Whilst GTC, as a public body, cannot lead on the BID, it is able to support organisations in developing the BID. – **Action 20**

10.16. Devolution of Public Assets

The Government has stated "power should be exercised at the lowest practical level - close to the people who are affected by decisions, rather than distant from them. Local authorities can do their job best when they have genuine freedom to respond to what local people want, not what they are told to do by Central Government. In challenging financial times, this freedom is more important than ever, enabling local authorities to innovate and deliver better value for taxpayers' money". ¹⁴

In providing the tools to enable words to become actions, the Government introduced the ability for a local council to obtain the General Power of Competence. As stated earlier, GTC holds this General Power. The granting of this power to GTC has allowed it to take over the ownership of the Godalming Museum building, and in partnership with the Godalming Museum Trust provides a Museum Service for the benefit of the town. Likewise, it also permitted the transfer of the public toilet facilities to GTC to ensure that such provision continues to be provided. These are examples of choices that can be made and outcomes that can be achieved when principal and local councils work together for the benefit of the local area.

There are a number of other areas where GTC believes the control of public assets from the principal authority to the local council would be to the benefit of the local community.

Although just outside the town centre area, two such assets, Charterhouse Green and The Lammas Land adjacent to Meadrow allotments, are considered to be place shapers not only for the immediate locality but also for the general feeling of community that greater use of these assets could achieve. Requests for the transfer of both these land assets have been made to WBC. – **Action 21**

¹⁴ Communities and Local Government (2011) A Plain English Guide to the Localism Act https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/5959/189 https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/5959/189

GTC would also wish to explore the transfer of a number of other local assets from larger authorities to the custodianship of the Town Council as representatives of the local community. These would include:

- the freehold of the public toilets enabling long term investment;
- the Crown Court pedestrian area providing a clearer line between community management, maintenance and future investment responsibilities;
- the freehold of the Wilfrid Noyce Centre safeguarding the provision of this important Community asset; and
- the freehold of The Burys Scouts HQ passing responsibility for the support and development of this important youth facility to the local community.

The future of principal authorities is under much debate and consideration, with each having to manage their statutory responsibilities in an ever-challenging financial environment.

It is suggested that whatever the future of larger authorities, any direction of travel will tend towards more remote and less local involvement, with an increasing number of discretionary, non-statutory provisions becoming the responsibility of local communities. It is argued that where a community is served by a local council, that council would be the logical conduit for local activity. GTC would wish to see this process managed in a proactive and collaborative manner for the benefit of the present and future local community. — **Action 22**

PART THREE

11. Action Plan

GTC's programme 2019-2023 informs many of the individual work strands being considered or actioned by the Council. However, whilst providing the generality of aims and objectives, the programme leaves the detail to be considered elsewhere.

This document has sought to consider in the round, a number of the aims and objectives contained within the programme as they pertain to the town centre area. Having looked at what GTC is either currently doing, planning to do or could do if it so wished, a table of current or potential actions is set out below.

12. Table of Actions

Action 1 Planning

Continue to provide an opportunity for the public to express their views on planning matters and to provide advocacy for the protection of the character and historic setting of the town centre area. Utilise GTC's social media to promote knowledge of how residents are able to express concerns to Members at meeting of the council or its committees.

Action 2 Article 4 Directive

Environment & Planning Committee to monitor planning schedules to ensure that any matter relating to Change of Use development within the Article 4 Direction Order area is subject to a planning application and to review all planning applications for development within the Article 4 Direction Order area.

Action 3 Wiggins Yard Environmental Improvement Scheme

To continue to explore options with WBC for the environmental improvement works to Wiggins Yard, bring forward proposals that are within the available S106 funding agreement and also provide the maximum benefit for residents. GTC to consider proposals and if approved, formally accept responsibility for the delivery of the project.

Action 4 Guildford to Godalming Greenway – Cross Godalming Section

When available bring the outcomes of the Design and Feasibility report to the Environment & Planning Committee and, if appropriate, support a bid for Strategic CIL funding.

Action 5 Current Pedestrianisation

Continue to implement the road traffic restrictions upon Godalming High Street to meet the requirements of the Temporary Road Traffic Order. Continue to be informed by Government Covid-19 regulations and social distancing protocols for the operation of the Traffic Order post 21 June 2021.

Action 6 Future Pedestrianisation

Work with SCC Member for Godalming North to establish options for traffic reduction within the Godalming town centre area to improve walkability and bikeability, including traffic access and speed restrictions. To bring forward proposals for endorsement by GTC and subsequent submission to SCC.

Action 7 Crown Court Pedestrian Area

Crown Court Working Group to consider options for improvements to the Crown Court pedestrian area and to seek the support of WBC for its implementation. To bring forward the preferred option for endorsement by GTC and, where required, Full Council approval for Neighbourhood CIL Funding.

Action 8 Community Events – The Green Environment

Seek GTC approval to waive hire fee for the bandstand for use by organisations or groups providing free community events.

Action 9 Community Events – The Green Environment

Investigate options and costing for the repair of the defective flood light column on The Burys Field.

Action 10 Community Events – The Green Environment

Obtain costings for the repair of the defective flood light column and bring to Policy & Management Committee for funding consideration. Work with WBC to identify further opportunities for community and commercial events that provide a benefit, attraction or activity for residents.

Action 11 Community Events – Town Centre Built Environment

Continue to support and organise community events in line with GTC Community Events Policy and decisions of the Council.

Action 12 Floral Godalming

Continue to implement Floral Godalming, seeking opportunities for sponsorship and working with SCC for the expansion of the scheme to incorporate the main approach roundabouts and roadside barriers at the pedestrian refuges around the approaches to the town.

Action 13 Floral Godalming

Seek to develop options for community engagement and involvement with the future of Floral Godalming, including options for 'Godalming Growers'.

Action 14 Signage, Rails, Bollards, Bells, Benches & Buildings

- Conduct a full audit of street furniture
- Implement a programme of repair and renovation during 2021
- Audit info-signage for accuracy
- Work with other info-signage providers, including WBC, rail operators and the Community Rail Partnership to provide a co-ordinated approach to info-signage.

Action 15 The Pepperpot

Bring forward plans for the exterior repair and repainting of The Pepperpot.

Action 16 The Pepperpot

GTC to investigate the installation of 'fixed' public seating and tables in the area around The Pepperpot.

Action 17 Buildings of Local Merit

GTC to champion a scheme for identification of Buildings of Local Merit and submit identified buildings for adoption by WBC.

Action 18 Public Art

GTC to 'champion' the establishment of an Art Forum within Godalming to provide a collective voice to seek opportunities to promote, display or perform art, including art within the public realm.

Action 19 Regeneration and Supporting the Local Economy

Work with WBC Economic Development Team (EDT) to promote Godalming as a positive business location, seek feedback from the EDT to identify negative issues that are within GTC powers, capabilities and resources to improve.

Action 20 Business Improvement District

Support Godalming & District Chamber of Commerce with information or resource in preparing a BID plan. Requests for significant staff resource of any financial support to be brought to Policy & Management Committee for consideration.

Action 21 Devolution of Public Assets

Report to Members on the progress of requested land transfers from WBC, Charterhouse Green and Lammas Land adjacent Meadrow allotments.

Action 22 Devolution of Public Assets

GTC to agree which assets it wishes WBC to devolve to the Town Council and formally request WBC to transfer those assets of local community value to the Town Council.



COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY

Financial Year Ended 31 March 2021

A Local Council must use Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) receipts passed to it to support the development of the local council's area, by funding:

- a) The provision, improvement, replacement, operation or maintenance of infrastructure; or
- b) Anything else that is concerned with addressing the demands that development places on an area.

The local council will be required to publish the following report on its website and on the website of the Borough Council.

The report should be published no later than 31 December following the reported year.

Regulation 121B Reference	Description	Amount
2(a)	Total CIL receipts for the reported year	£36,759.66
2(b)	Total CIL expenditure for the reported year	£NIL
2(c)	Summary details of CIL expenditure during the reported year including: (i) The items to which CIL has been applied (ii) The amount of CIL expenditure on each item	£NIL
2(d)	Details of any notices received in accordance with regulation 59E*, including: (i) The total value of CIL receipts subject to notices served in accordance with regulation 59E during the reported year (ii) The total value of CIL receipts subject to a notice served in accordance with regulation 59E in any year that has not been paid to the relevant charging authority by the end of the reported year	NONE
2(e)(i)	The total amount of CIL receipts for the reported year retained at the end of the reported year	£36,759.66
2(e)(ii)	The total amount of CIL receipts from previous years retained at the end of the reported year	£4,844.31

^{*}Regulation 59E – Recovery of CIL passed to Local Councils. This will apply where a Local Council has not spent its CIL in accordance with the CIL Regulations or has not spent CIL within 5 years of its receipt.

Risk Assessment



Area:

Safeguarding

Date of Assessment:

06/02/2020

Date of Last Assessment:

06/02/2020

Persons Name:

Responsible Town Clerk – Andy Jeffery

Name of Assessor:

Date of Next Gerry Boyle Assessment:

January 2021

Signature:

<u>Hazards</u>	<u>Persons at Risk</u>	Existing Precautions	Severity	Likelihood	Numerical Risk	Risk Rating	Additional Controls	Task Frequency
An inadequate safeguarding structure contributes to harm to children and/or vulnerable adults	Children, vulnerable adults	Safeguarding policy adopted by the Council in July 2017 and last reviewed on 26 September 2019. Safeguarding regime for events held by the Council and/or on Council premises. Safeguarding training for nominated Council staff.	5	3	15	HIGH	Report any concerns per defined processes	Review policy every two years
An inadequate safeguarding structure leads to public concern and loss of credibility of the Council (even if no harm occurs)	Council employees; Council officers; Councillors	Safeguarding policy adopted by the Council in July 2017 and last reviewed on 26 September 2019. Safeguarding regime for events held by the Council and/or on Council premises Safeguarding training for nominated Council staff.	4	3	12	HIGH		Review policy every two years

Lliab	violeo	12-25
-uuu	ricks	1/-/-

Immediate action required to either eliminate or adequately control the risk before further activity takes place.

Medium risks 5-10

Review existing control measures to determine effectiveness. Where necessary implement further risk reducing measures.

Low risks <5

Adequately controlled. No actions required but keep assessment under review. Additional controls will further reduce risk.

		Severity			
Likelihood	Negligible	Minor	Moderate	Major	Catastrophic
Rare	1	2	3	4	5
Unlikely	2	4	6	8	10
Possible	3	6	9	12	15
Likely	4	8	12	16	20
Almost certain	5	10	15	20	25

Risk Assessment



<u>Hazards</u>	<u>Persons at Risk</u>	Existing Precautions	Severity	Likelihood	Numerical Risk	Risk Rating	Additional Controls	Task Frequency
Terms and conditions for hirers organising activities do not include adequate requirements for hirers to have a safeguarding policy	Children, vulnerable adults	Council Safeguarding Policy Council Terms and Conditions for hirers	4	2	8	Medium	Terms and Conditions to be reviewed by independent professionals with experience in safeguarding issues	Annual review of Terms and Conditions
The Council does not appoint a named Safeguarding Officer or appoint a Safeguarding Officer who lacks time, expertise or commitment	Children, vulnerable adults [There are risks to the Council and its Officers and Members in terms of reputation and credibility but these seem entirely secondary to the risk to children and vulnerable adults]	Nomination of a Safeguarding Officer Training of Safeguarding Officer Performance Monitoring of Safeguarding Officer Quarterly reporting to Members	4	2	8	Medium	Review of Safeguarding process at least every two years	Appointment of Safeguarding Officer as required Annual performance appraisal of Safeguarding Officer Quarterly reporting to Members

High risks 12-25	
Immediate action r	·e

equired to either eliminate or adequately control the risk before further activity takes place.

Medium risks 5-10

Review existing control measures to determine effectiveness. Where necessary implement further risk reducing measures.

Low risks <5

Adequately controlled. No actions required but keep assessment under review. Additional controls will further reduce risk.

		Severity			
Likelihood	Negligible	Minor	Moderate	Major	Catastrophic
Rare	1	2	3	4	5
Unlikely	2	4	6	8	10
Possible	3	6	9	12	15
Likely	4	8	12	16	20
Almost certain	5	10	15	20	25

Risk Assessment



<u>Hazards</u>	Persons at Risk	Existing Precautions	Severity	Likelihood	Numerical Risk	Risk Rating	Additional Controls	Task Frequency
One or more incidents or concerns related to safeguarding which are reported to the GTC Safeguarding Officer is not treated seriously and/or is not managed in accordance with Surrey County Council MASH safeguarding policies.	Children, vulnerable adults [There are risks to the Council and its Officers and Members in terms of reputation and credibility but these seem entirely secondary to the risk to children and vulnerable adults]	Safeguarding policy adopted by the Council July 2017. Safeguarding regime for events held by the Council and/or on Council premises Safeguarding training for Council staff Performance Monitoring of Safeguarding Officer Quarterly reporting to Members	4	2	∞	Medium	Review of Safeguarding process at least every two years	Annual performance appraisal of Safeguarding Officer Quarterly reporting to Members

Immediate action required to either eliminate or adequately control the risk before further activity takes place.

Medium risks 5-10

Review existing control measures to determine effectiveness. Where necessary implement further risk reducing measures.

Low risks <5

Adequately controlled. No actions required but keep assessment under review. Additional controls will further reduce risk.

		Severity			
Likelihood	Negligible	Minor	Moderate	Major	Catastrophic
Rare	1	2	3	4	5
Unlikely	2	4	6	8	10
Possible	3	6	9	12	15
Likely	4	8	12	16	20
Almost certain	5	10	15	20	25

Scale of Charges per hour for Broadwater Park Community Centre From 1 April 2021

	*Voluntary Organisations	**GU7 Rate (Casual Hire)	Standard Rate
BROADWATER PARK COMMUNITY CEN	£ ITRE	£	£
WHOLE CENTRE	14 + (2.80 VAT)	20 + (4.00 VAT)	28 + (5.60 VAT)
	(16.80 per hour)	(24.00 per hour)	(33.60 per hour)
MAIN HALL ONLY	9 + (1.80 VAT)	13 + (2.60 VAT)	18 + (3.60 VAT)
	(10.80 per hour)	(15.60 per hour)	(21.60 per hour)
SMALL HALL ONLY	7 + (1.40 VAT)	11 + (2.20 VAT)	14 + (2.80 VAT)
	(8.40 per hour)	(13.20 per hour)	(16.80 per hour)

A charge of £50.00 per hour will be levied for Christmas Day, Boxing Day, and New Year's Eve evening and New Year's Day.

Performance of Music - With the exception of private family events, i.e. birthday parties, weddings etc., events that involve the playing of either recorded music e.g. a disco, or the performance of live music e.g. a band, will be charged the appropriate tariff charge of the Performing Rights Society (PRS) this includes fundraising events whether free entry or not.

Damage Deposit: A refundable damage deposit between £30 & £150 depending on the nature of the event is required. Deposits will be returned within 15 working days of an event if no claim is required.

^{*} **Voluntary Organisation Rate** is only available to local charities and voluntary organisations who have a community link with the Godalming local area (Godalming/Milford/Busbridge/Hascombe/Witley/Wormley).

^{**} **GU7 Rate** is available to individuals and businesses living or operating within the GU7 postal area (Businesses should indicate whether they are members of Godalming & District Chamber of Commerce. Upon confirmation a members discount may apply)

Scale of Charges per hour for Pepperpot and Bandstand From 1 April 2021

	*Voluntary Organisations	**GU7 Rate (Casual Hire)	Standard Rate
PEPPERPOT:	£	£	£
UPPER ROOM	8 + (1.60 VAT) (9.60 per hour)	14 + (2.80 VAT) (16.80 per hour)	16 + (3.20 VAT) (19.20 per hour)
UNDERCROFT	6 + (1.20 VAT) (7.20 per hour)	7 + (1.40 VAT) (8.40 per hour)	7 + 1.40 VAT) (8.40 per hour)
AV EQUIPMENT	10+ (2.00 VAT) (12.00 flat fee)	10+ (2.00 VAT) (12.00 flat fee)	10+ (2.00 VAT) (12.00 flat fee)
GODALMING BANDSTAND:			
BANDSTAND (Minimum 2 hour hire)	11 per hour (Plus PRS fee)	11 per hour (Plus PRS fee)	11 per hour (Plus PRS fee)

^{*} **Voluntary Organisation Rate** is only available to local charities and voluntary organisations who have a community link with the Godalming local area (Godalming/Milford/Busbridge/Hascombe/Witley/Wormley).

Undercroft - In certain circumstances (normally when sharing takes place) one half (one pitch) of the Undercroft may be hired out for one half of the standard charge.

Performance of Music - Events that involve the playing of either recorded music or the performance of live music will be charged the appropriate tariff charge of the Performing Rights Society (PRS) this includes fundraising events whether free entry or not.

Damage Deposit: A refundable damage deposit of £30 & £150 depending on the nature of the event is required. Deposits will be returned within 15 working days of an event if no claim is required.

^{**} **GU7 Rate** is available to individuals and businesses living or operating within the GU7 postal area (Businesses should indicate whether they are members of Godalming & District Chamber of Commerce. Upon confirmation a members discount may apply)

Scale of Charges per hour for Wilfrid Noyce Centre From 1 April 2021

	Voluntary Organisations (Excluding Fri & Sat Evenings) £	GU7 Rate (Casual Hire) (Excluding Fri & Sat Evenings) £	Standard Rate
WILFRID NOYCE CENTRE:	2	۷	۷
WHOLE CENTRE (including use of Kitchen for catering facilities)	20 + (4.00 VAT) (24.00 per hour)	35 + (7.00 VAT) (42.00 per hour)	42.50 + (8.50 VAT) (51.00 per hour)
CAUDLE + WYATT (including use of Kitchen for catering facilities)	15 + (3.00 VAT)	25 + (5.00 VAT)	32.50 + (6.50 VAT)
	(18.00 per hour)	(30.00 per hour)	(39.00 per hour)
CAUDLE + OGLETHORPE (including use of Kitchen for catering facilities)	15 + (3.00 VAT)	25 + (5.00 VAT)	32.50 + (6.50 VAT)
	(18.00 per hour)	(30.00 per hour)	(39.00 per hour)
CAUDLE HALL ONLY (including shared use of Kitchen for tea/coffee facilities)	10 + (2.00 VAT)	15 + (3.00 VAT)	20 + (4.00 VAT)
	(12.00 per hour)	(18.00 per hour)	(24.00 per hour)
WYATT ROOM ONLY (including shared use of Kitchen for tea/coffee facilities)	7 + (1.40 VAT) (8.40 per hour)	11 + (2.20 VAT) (13.20 per hour)	14 + (2.80 VAT) (16.80 per hour)
OGLETHORPE HALL ONLY (with kitchenette and separate toilet facilities)	7 + (1.40 VAT)	11 + (2.20 VAT)	14 + (2.80 VAT)
	(8.40 per hour)	(13.20 per hour)	(16.80 per hour)
AV EQUIPMENT (projector, microphones, sound system)	30 + (6.00 VAT)	30 + (6.00 VAT)	30 + (6.00 VAT)
	(36.00 flat fee)	(36.00 flat fee)	(36.00 flat fee)
TIERED SEATING	50 + (10.00 VAT)	50 + (10.00 VAT)	50 + (10.00 VAT)
	(60.00 flat fee)	(60.00 flat fee)	(60.00 flat fee)
CROCKERY & CUTLERY	30 + (6.00 VAT)	30 + (6.00 VAT)	30 + (6.00 VAT)
	(36.00 flat fee)	(36.00 flat fee)	(36.00 flat fee)
STAGE	50 + (10.00 VAT)	50 + (10.00 VAT)	50 + (10.00 VAT)
	(60.00 flat fee)	(60.00 flat fee)	(60.00 flat fee)
SET UP & CLEAR DOWN	30 + (6.00 VAT)	30 + (6.00 VAT)	30 + (6.00 VAT)
	(36.00 flat fee)	(36.00 flat fee)	(36.00 flat fee)
BANQUETING TABLES	Price on request		
		Residents	Non-Residents
WEDDINGS (subject to confirmation of requirement)		800 + (160 VAT) (960.00 flat fee)	1,000 + (200 VAT) (1,200.00 flat fee)

A charge of £50.00 per hour will be levied for Christmas Day, Boxing Day, and New Year's Eve evening and New Year's Day.

Friday & Saturday Evenings from 18.00: Standard Rate only will apply to all hires

- * **Voluntary Organisation Rate** is only available to local charities and voluntary organisations who have a community link with the Godalming local area (Godalming/Milford/Busbridge/Hascombe/Witley/Wormley).
- ** **GU7 Rate** is available to individuals and businesses living or operating within the GU7 postal area (Businesses should indicate whether they are members of Godalming & District Chamber of Commerce. Upon confirmation a members discount may apply)

Performance of Music - With the exception of private family events, i.e. birthday parties, weddings etc., events that involve the playing of either recorded music or the performance of live music will be charged the appropriate tariff charge of the Performing Rights Society (PRS) this includes fundraising events whether free entry or not.

DISCO's Hirers who engage the services of a mobile disco or similar are to ensure they have a Phonographic Performance Licence (PPL) and if required a Pro-DUB licence (reputable mobile discos will hold these licences).

Damage Deposit: A refundable damage deposit between £30 & £500 depending on the nature of the event is required. Deposits will be returned within 15 working days of an event if no claim is required.

GODALMING TOWN COUNCIL

Disclosure by a Member¹ of a disclosable pecuniary interest or a non-pecuniary interest in a matter under consideration at a meeting (S.31 (4) Localism Act 2011 and the adopted Godalming Members' Code of Conduct).

As required by the Localism Act 2011 and the adopted Godalming Members' Code of Conduct, **I HEREBY DISCLOSE**, for the information of the authority that I have [a disclosable pecuniary interest]² [a non-pecuniary interest]³ in the following matter:-

COMMIT	IEE:	יט	AIE:	
NAME OF	COUNCILLOR:			
Please use	e the form below to state	e in which agenda ite	ems you have ar	n interest.
Agenda No.	Subject	Disclosable Pecuniary Interest	Non- Pecuniary Interest	Reason
Signed				Dated

¹ "Member" includes co-opted member, member of a committee, joint committee or sub-committee

² A disclosable pecuniary interest is defined by the Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) regulations 2012/1464 and relate to employment, office, trade, profession or vocation, sponsorship, contracts, beneficial interests in land, licences to occupy land, corporate tenancies and securities

³ A non-pecuniary interest is defined by Section 5 (4) of the Godalming Members' Code of Conduct.